
BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Russell Cotes Art Gallery and Museum 
Management Committee 
 

Date: Monday, 20 March 2023 at 11.00 am 

Venue: Committee Room, First Floor, BCP Civic Centre Annex, St Stephen's 
Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6LL 

 

Membership: 

Chairman: 

Stuart Bartholomew 

Vice Chairman: 

Cllr L Williams 

Cllr B Dunlop 
Cllr M Iyengar 
 

Mr G Irvine 
Mr A Frost 
 

Sir George Meyrick Baronet 
Ms F Winrow 
 

 

All Members of the Russell Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Management Committee are 
summoned to attend this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda 
below. 

 
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 

link: 
 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5614 

 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 

contact: Nicky Hooley or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 

email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 

GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 

10 March 2023 

 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 



 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from members of the Committee. 

 

 

2.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 8 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on 

30 January 2023.   
 

 

4.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 

for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=15

1&Info=1&bcr=1 

The deadline for the submission of public questions is 4 clear working days 
before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday the working day 
before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 
meeting. 
 

 

5.   Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report 9 - 86 

 To note the new acquisitions to the Collection (material owned and held in 
trust by the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum charity in accordance with 
its charitable objectives) and the loan of material to other institutions (ie 

public art galleries and museums and to approve the disposal of items in 
the Collection which do not meet the Museum’s Core Offer according to the 

Museums Association Code of Ethics. 
 

 

6.   Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum Update Report 87 - 94 

 This report provides an update on the activities of the Russell-Cotes Art 

Gallery & Museum from 1 October 2022 – 28 February 2023. 

Visitor numbers and performance have continued at pre-Covid levels with 
sustained good performance in admissions, shop and café.   

Visitors are now returning for group travel, education activities and events. 
 
 

 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

7.   Update on 'Repair and Renewal' Project funded by ACE MEND for 

restoration of Conservatory 
95 - 98 

 The ACE MEND Project is underway: 

 work on replacement and renewal of the environmental plant and 

machinery is designed and commissioned with work starting on 13 
March and to be completed in 3 phases by February 2024.    

 The detailed specifications and work required for the Conservatory 
repairs have been completed ready for imminent tender.  

 Drainage surveys completed 

 CCTV updates yet to be started  

The project remains in budget and on time, with a proposed completion 

date of February 2024. 

 

 

8.   Update on Progress towards Externalization 99 - 106 

 The Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Management Committee’s 

recommendation for governance change of the Museum has been fully 
supported by the approval of externalisation, formally agreed at BCP 

Council meeting on 10 January 2023.  Financial support of £98,500 has 
been received from National Heritage Lottery Fund which will support the 
legal costs for governance change and the transition costs for a new 

independent operation. 

The work programme to achieve externalisation can now be implemented.  

The priority is to initiate the application to the Charity Commission for a 
change of governance under Section 73 of the Charities Act, which requires 
decisions on the specific governance changes desired. 

In order to manage the complex, multi-faceted process a Steering 
Committee will be set up consisting of Portfolio Holder, Management 

Committee Members, BCP Council officers and museum staff and advisers, 
which will meet regularly. This is in addition to regular update reports to this 
Committee for approval. 

 

 

 

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent 
for reasons that must be specified and recorded in the Minutes. 
 



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
MONDAY, 30TH JANUARY, 2023 

 
 

Present:  
 

Stuart Bartholomew in the Chair 

 Councillors Cllr L Williams (Vice-Chairman) and 
Ms F Winrow 

 
 

Apologies:  
 

Mr A Frost and Sir George Meyrick Baronet 

 
 
 

37 Apologies  

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Mr Alan Frost, Sir George Meyrick, Greg Irvine 
and Councillor Dunlop joined the meeting online. 
 

38 Declarations of Interests  

 
Councillor Williams declared an interest as a member of the Arts Council South West but took 
full-part in the meeting.   
 

39 Confirmation of Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2022 were agreed as a true and correct 
record. 

Voting: unanimous 

 
40 Financial Statements 2021/22  

 
The Company Accountant presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each 
Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

It was a statutory requirement to agree the annual financial statements for the Russell-Cotes 
Art Gallery and Museum and submit them to the Charity Commission by 31 January each 
year. The Committee are asked to review and agree the financial statements and the Letter of 
Representation prior to them being signed off by the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance 
and Transformation. 

It was asked, as Covid restrictions had still been in place for part of the year 2021/22, could 
the end of year figures be speculated upon, had they not been.  It was advised that much of 
the expenditure had been covered by the Arts Council grant – cultural recovery fund – so the 
figures were not as it appeared in the accounts, as some monies were carried froward from 
the previous year.  It was explained that in accountancy, income was included in the year it is 
received, rather than when it was used.  The income received was as following: 19/20: £514K; 
21/22: £486k, excluding grant income.  Expenditure: 19/20: £1073; and 21/22: £1111.   

In response to a question about the success of the business following Covid, it was explained 
that in comparison with pre-covid visitor figures, at the beginning of May 2021, 75% of visitors 
but by the end of the year 90% and now 100%.  The entrance prices have slightly increased 
also.  The focus had been on attracting visitors since re-opening and meeting expectations.  
The recovery had been above and beyond what was expected.   

The external Auditor Nick Hiscox was in attendance and advised that difficulties encountered 
during the audit included, the charity not having a separate bank account, but using the 

5

Agenda Item 3



Monday, 30th January, 2023  

Council’s, which underwrote the seeking of independent status.  This had led to further audit 
work, to ensure the complete audit record.  It was exceptional to have it done this way.  There 
was also no separate VAT system.  It was further advised that charities had different 
legislation for VAT purposes and HMRC are likely to recognise this also.  In response to a 
question about valuations, it was explained that the big issue was the valuation of the building 
rather than the separate issues.  The details referred to a building value based on an 
insurance valuation of the building, rather than a chartered surveyor’s valuation.  It was felt 
that much of what had been discussed underwrote the reason for recommending separation 
from the Council.  It was advised that a proper valuation of the building would be advisable 
before the externalisation is completed, for the next accounts. 

RESOLVED that the Committee agree the financial statements and the Letter of 
Representation for the financial year 2021/22. 

Voting: Unanimous 

 
41 Update on Progress on the Museum's Forward Plan (2020 - 2024)  

 
The Museum Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each 
Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Forward Plan (2020-2024) outlined the museum’s 
strategic objectives as required by Arts Council England (ACE) Museum Accreditation. 

This update gave Management Committee Members an understanding of the progress to 
date, against these objectives and the planned actions to come.  The Museum had made 
good progress in some areas such as: 

 driving investment to the conservation of the fabric of the building (MEND); 

 conservation of items in the collection;  

 improvements to the room displays and interpretation; 

 development of popular programming and events; and 

 more focussed marketing. 

However, the review of governance has proven to be complex and challenging. The Update 
enables the Management Committee to review progress and make suggestions for future 
activities and actions. 

The Committee acknowledged that the Council had agreed the process for externalisation of 
the Art Gallery and Museum and gave their thanks to the Councillors in support at the meeting 
of Full Council.  Thanks was also given to the Museum Manager for the work she did in 
advance of the meeting of Full Council.   

It was suggested that in addition to the short-term projection on the plan, there needed to be a 
long-term section, covering possibly two to four years ahead.  This would advertise the 
Museum and would be useful when applying for grants and support.  It was suggested that a 
forward planning workshop needed to be established and also, consideration be given to what 
bodies, such as Arts Council SW would want to be considered.  

It was further suggested that a bulletin be produced, which would help to keep people up to 
date with progress.   

RESOLVED that: 

The Management Committee: 

a) noted the progress made against the strategic objectives identified in the 
Forward Plan; 

b) reviewed the future activity planned; and 

6



Monday, 30th January, 2023  

c) recommended the following further actions and activities to be 

undertaken to achieve them: 

i. in addition to the short-term projection on the plan, there needed to 
be a long-term section, covering possibly two to four years ahead; 

and 

ii. a bulletin be produced, which would help to keep people up to date 

with progress.   

Voting: Unanimous 

 
 
 
Duration of the meeting: 2.00  - 2.50 pm  

 
 

Chairman at the meeting on 
Monday, 30 January 2023 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND 
MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report 

Meeting date  20 March 2023 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  To note the new acquisitions to the Collection (material owned and 
held in trust by the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum charity in 
accordance with its charitable objectives) and the loan of material 
to other institutions (ie public art galleries and museums and to 
approve the disposal of items in the Collection which do not meet 
the Museum’s Core Offer according to the Museums Association 
Code of Ethics. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Management Committee notes and approves 

a) The acquisitions 

b) The loans 

c) The disposals 

As outlined in the Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The recommendations are in line with the Museum’s agreed 

policies and procedures, including its Collections Development 

Strategy, which outlines the areas of the collection for development 

and those areas which do not meet the Core Offer and are 

therefore subject to disposal in order to achieve a more usable, well 

managed collection. The process and procedures used conform to 

the Museums Association Code of Ethics. 

  

9

Agenda Item 5



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Beverley Dunlop, Portfolio Holder for Culture, Tourism and 
Vibrant Places 

Corporate Director  Jess Gibbons, Chief Operations Officer 

Report Authors Sarah Newman, Museum Manager 

Duncan Walker, Curator 

Wards  Not applicable  

Classification  For Update and Decision  
Ti t l e:   

 

 

Background 

1. The Management Committee is required to note the acquisitions and loans made by 
the museum and to formally approve disposals from the Collection in line with the 
Collections Development Strategy and subject to the Museums Association Code of 
Ethics. 

Options Appraisal 

2. Each action is decided on a case by case basis in line with the Collections 
Development Strategy as outlined in the report and appendices. 

Summary of financial implications 

3. There are minimal financial costs from the acquisitions and any financial implication 
(storage, conservation cost) is taken into consideration when deciding on the 
acquisition of material. 

4. The costs of loans are borne by the borrowers and it is anticipated that the 
institutions which acquire disposed objects will cover costs of removal and transport. 

5. Any income generated by the sale of items from the Collection is held in a restricted 
fund and used solely for the purposes of acquiring items for the Collection 
(according to the Collections Development Strategy) or conserving objects already 
in the Collection in compliance with the Museums Association Code of Ethics and 
item 16.11 of the Collections Development Strategy.  

Summary of legal implications 

6. All activities are carried out in line with the Museums Association Code of Ethics and 
the Museum’s Collection Development Strategy. 

10



Background papers 

Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Collections Development Strategy. See 

https://russellcotes.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/5-Collections-Development- 

Policy.pdf 

Appendices 

1. Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals 1 October 2022 – 20 March  2023 

2. Disposals Report – 20 March 2023 

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



Appendix 1 
Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum 

Management Committee March 2023 
Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report 

 

Acquisitions for the Collections 
31 September 2022 - 20 March 2023 

 

Donor / Method of 
Acquisition 

Material Date of 
Acquisition 

Mr Chris Jenkins Items relating to the life and career of David Jenkins (1926-2020) who served as an 

Agricultural Advisor and Volunteer Game Warden for the Colonial Government for 
Kenya, 1955-1963. The group includes items made by the Kikuyu people of central 
Kenya as well as photographs and an unpublished a memoir.  

14.12.2023 

Transfer from Hertford 

Museum 

A flyer for J.E. Beale’s ‘Fancy Fair’ department store.   25.2.2023 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

13



Loans from the Russell-Cotes to other Galleries and Museums 
 

 

Completed 
 

Borrower Exhibition Dates Item(s) borrowed Visitor 
numbers 

Fondazione La 

Triennale di Milano 

‘Unknown Unknowns. 

An Introduction to 
Mysteries’ 

15.7.2022 – 

11.12.2022 

00786 ‘The Crater of Kilauea’ by Charles 

Fureaux 

305,767 

The Sainsbury 
Centre for Visual 
Arts (University of 

East Anglia, 
Norwich) 

‘Visions of Ancient 
Egypt’ 

3.9.2022-
1.1.2023 

SC3 ‘Cleopatra’ by Eugenio Lombardi,  
RC823 Wedgwood 'Bat' vase,  
RC814 Wedgwood 'Crocodile' sugar bowl,  

01350 'Alethe' by Edwin Long RA,  
00908 'Subsiding of the Nile' by Frederick 

Goodall RA,  
RC232 Egyptian Necklace 

tbc 

William Morris 
Gallery 

‘The Legend of King 
Arthur and the Pre-

Raphaelites’ 

8.10.2022-
28.1.2023 

00299 'Study for King Arthur' by Herbert Bone   tbc 

Henry Moore 

Institute, Leeds 

‘The Art of Anxiety: 

Sculpture and Colour in 
Victorian Britain’ 
(working title) 

25.11.2022 – 

26.2.2023 

SC20 'Nelusko' by Luigi Pagani 

SC22 'Selika'  
SC119 The Mother (Woman and Child) attb. 
To Raffaelle Monti 

tbc 

 

Current 
 

Borrower Exhibition Dates Item(s) Borrowed 

The Laing Art 

Gallery (Newcastle) 

‘Visions of Ancient 

Egypt’ 

28.1.2023-

29.4.2023 

SC3 ‘Cleopatra’ by Eugenio Lombardi,  

RC823 Wedgwood 'Bat' vase,  
RC814 Wedgwood 'Crocodile' sugar bowl,  

01350 'Alethe' by Edwin Long RA,  

14



00908 'Subsiding of the Nile' by Frederick Goodall RA,  
RC232 Egyptian Necklace 

Falmouth Art 

Gallery, Tullie 
House Museum and 
Art Gallery 

‘The Legend of King 

Arthur and the Pre-
Raphaelites’ 

4.2.2023 – 

29.9.2023 
 

00572, 00574-00580 Nine watercolour illustrations by Walter 

Crane for the book ‘King Arthur’s Knights: The Tales Retold for 
Boys and Girls’ by Henry Gilbert, 1911. 
07851 Book ‘King Arthur’s Knights: The Tales Retold for Boys 

and Girls’ by Henry Gilbert, 1911. 
00299 'Study for King Arthur' by Herbert Bone   

Pallant House 
Gallery (Chichester) 

‘Sussex Landscape: 
Chalk, Wood and Water’ 

12.11.2022-
23.4.2023 

00835 ‘The South Downs near Eastbourne’ by Edward Reginald 
Frampton 

Hamburg Kunsthalle ‘Femme Fatale: Gaze – 
Power – Gender’ 

9.12.2022 –  
10.4.2023 

00515 ‘An Incantation’ by John Collier 

Kunsthalle Munchen 

(Munich) 

‘Flowers Forever. 

Flowers in Art and 
Culture’ 

3.2.2023-

9.7.2023 

01897 ‘Venus Verticordia’ by D.G. Rossetti 

Museo d’Arte 
Moderna e 
Contemporanea di 

Casa Cavazzini 
(Udine, Italy) 

‘Together’  18.2.2023-
16.7.2023 

02734 ‘The Annunciation’ by Simeon Solomon 
01631 ‘War Profiteers’ Christopher Richard Wynne Nevinson 
 

 
Future 

 

Borrower Exhibition Dates Item(s) Borrowed 

Casa delle 

Esposizioni of Illegio 
(Illegio, Italy) 

‘Flesh’ 21.5.2023-

22.10.2023 

00718 'Life' by Charles Dougdale 

01968 'Jezebel' by John Byam Shaw 
01245 'La Sirene' by Charles Landelle 
02313 'Sunlight Nude' by George Spencer Waterson 

British Museum ‘Burma and Myanmar: a 

history in objects’ 

2.11.2023-

11.2.2024 

T11.7.2005.15 Mirrored glass Buddhist shrine 

 

15



 

Disposals from the Russell-Cotes Collection 
 

Object Number  Description  Image  Proposed intended 

action  

:TIN 1 Waterline ship model of a generic 

19th Century three masted 

merchantman. 

 

 

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

BORGM:1975.33 A model of a 15th century 

carrack, possibly a 

representation of Columbus’s 

Santa Maria, dated to 1880-1930. 

 

  

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

16



:768.64.29 A model of a 16th century 

galleon, dated to 1880-1930. 

 

  

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association.  

 :894.67.65 Ship model of the barquetine 

‘Annie Francis’ of London, dated 

to 1880-1900 

 
 

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

17



:A675 Travel agent’s display model of a 

Concorde airliner (in 

manufacturers livery). 

 

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

:A674 Travel agent’s display model of a 

BAC-111 (in British United 

Airways livery). 

 
  

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

BORGM:1983.56 Hornby OO Gauge presentation 

model of Stephenson’s ‘Rocket’ 

(R796A) 

 

 

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

18



BORGM:1983.57.

1 

A commemorative plate made to 

mark the Centenary of 

Huddersfield Corporation 

Tramways, 1883-1983. 

 
 

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

BORGM:1983.57.

2 

A commemorative plate made to 

mark the centenary of the 

establishment of Halifax 

Corporation Tramways, 1882-

1983. 

 
 

Offer as a transfer to 

suitable public 

collection via Museums 

Association. 

 

 
 

     

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND 
MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum Update Report 

Meeting date  20 March 2023 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report provides an update on the activities of the Russell-
Cotes Art Gallery & Museum from 1 October 2022 – 28 February 
2023. 

Visitor numbers and performance have continued at pre-Covid 
levels with sustained good performance in admissions, shop and 
café.   

Visitors are now returning for group travel, education activities and 
events. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Management Committee accepts the Russell-Cotes Art 
Gallery and Museum review report for the period 1 October 
2022 – 28 February 2023 and agrees the actions suggested in 
the report. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To demonstrate the fulfilment of the Committee’s responsibility to 
provide strategic oversight of the Russell-Cotes as the delegated 
governance body for the Charity. 

  

87

Agenda Item 6



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Beverley Dunlop, Portfolio Holder for Tourism, Culture 
and Vibrant Places 

Corporate Director  Jess Gibbons, Chief Operations Officer 

Report Authors Amanda Barrie, Service Director, Destination and Culture 

Michael Spender, Head of Culture 

Sarah Newman, Museum Manager 

Wards  Not applicable  

Classification  For Update  
Ti t l e:   

 

 

Visitor Figures and Performance 

1. Admission Figures continue to be in line with pre-pandemic numbers. The table 
below shows figures until 2 March 2023 which suggest that the Museum should 
exceed 2019/20 performance. Income is £183,000 (end of Feb) against a target of 
£188,000 for the year. 

 

 

 

 

2. The Friends and Annual Ticket schemes are doing extremely well, driven by the 
Lates Programming, and have already generated £16,000 an increase of more than 
50% on 2021/22.  We are trying to establish a Direct Debit scheme with the 
Council’s finance team which will make renewals much easier. 

Year 2019 2020 2021 2022

Month museum café total museum café total museum café total museum café total 

April 3277 613 3890 0 0 0 0 382 382 3652 608 4260

May 3353 640 3993 0 0 0 1185 388 1573 3261 565 3826

June 3488 590 4078 0 0 0 2724 195 2919 3601 757 4358

July 3718 593 4311 873 12 885 3441 257 3698 3732 598 4330

Aug 4161 813 4974 1856 124 1980 4141 575 4716 4575 538 5113

Sep 3771 725 4496 2823 208 3031 3662 685 4347 4004 573 4577

Oct 3976 676 4652 2066 204 2270 4083 612 4695 3659 417 4076

Nov 2847 690 3537 187 22 209 2573 511 3084 3011 506 3517

Dec 1818 358 2176 1215 77 1292 2392 353 2745 2957 317 3274

Jan 2824 614 3438 0 0 0 847 224 1071 1665 289 1954

Feb 3599 606 4205 0 0 0 3304 432 3736 3314 528 3842

Mar 1853 324 2177 0 0 0 3558 497 4055 178 21 199

Total 38685 7242 45927 9020 647 9667 31910 5111 37021 37609 5717 43326

summer 21768 3974 25742 5552 344 5896 15153 2482 17635 22825 3639 26464

winter 16917 3268 20185 3468 303 3771 16757 2629 19386 14784 2078 16862

88



Building  

3. The package of repairs to the road-side of the building was completed in the autumn 
with urgent repairs to joinery, leadwork and external redecoration. Water ingress to 
the café gallery has been resolved and internal redecorations completed. Urgent 
repairs have been completed in the staff room area and Building Services are 
reviewing the need for further work in this area, as water ingress on the seafront 
elevation continues to be a problem. Ivy has been removed from the Study Centre. 

4. See separate report for progress on the MEND project  

 

Collections and Conservation Care 

5. During the annual closure weeks in January, all wooden floors were polished with 
sacrificial layers to protect them from wear and tear.  Staff used it as an opportunity 
to rationalise storage and for a major clear out of offices. 

6. West Dean College conservation students conducted another Clock day in 
February, servicing all the clocks during opening hours for the interest of visitors.  
The Lund and Blockley clock in the Main Hall is now chiming and a working 1830s 
French clock has been added to the Boudoir. 

7. There are signs that the Fountain in the Main Hall needs consolidation for which a 
Conservator has been commissioned and longer term we are keen to commission a 
report on the Fountain and identify a proposal for its conservation and potential 
reinstatement and the budget required. 

8. ‘Passport to Japan: Sir Merton and Lady Annie Russell-Cotes and their Victorian 
Vision of the East’ by Greg Irvine, (Management Committee Member and former 
curator of the Japanese Department at the V&A), was published in January 2023 
and is on sale in the shop. 

9. See separate Report for the Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals.  

 

Interpretation and Display 

10.  Interpretation Review has been completed to enhance visitor experience and 
address decolonisation issues. The next phase of the Strategy is ready to be 
implemented.   

11. Minor changes to displays were completed in the January closure weeks eg 
paintings and collections moved in the Irving Room and displays tweaked in Mikado, 
Yellow and Red Rooms to make displays more attractive and objects more visible.  

12. Further activity is paused subject to staff recruitment. 

 

Programming 

‘Telling Tales; The Story of Victorian Narrative Art’  8 October 2022 – 5 March 2023   

13. This exhibition has been well received and associated programming proved popular 
including online talks, curator talks, themed ‘Late’ and a talk by Lucinda Hawksley 
on Charles Dickens.  The exhibition which was undertaken in partnership with 
Southampton City Art Gallery opens at Southampton on 17 March – 1 July 2023 and 
will include 15 works from the Russell-Cotes’ collection.  

89



14. The requirement to steward the exhibition with volunteers to fulfil the requirements of 
GIS has been challenging, particularly during the cold winter months.  The museum 
will review this approach for future shows. 

‘New Histories and Old Stories: portraits by Jack Dickson’ 7 October – 12 March 

2023 

15. This selling exhibition in the Café Gallery of stunning mixed media portraits of sitters 
of mixed heritage by Jack Dickson has also been very popular. The exhibition has 
been extended to coincide with Jack’s appearance on BBCs  ‘Make It At Market’ 
programme which aired in early 2023.  As a consequence of the exhibition and the 
programme, he has had success in commissions and competitions.  

‘In her own voice: The Art of Lucy Kemp-Welch (1869 – 1958)’ opening 1 April 2023 

16. This exhibition, in partnership with the National Horseracing Museum in Newmarket  
and supported by ‘The Art Fund and Weston Loan Programme, will be the first major 
retrospective of works by Lucy Kemp-Welch for 20 years.  Coinciding with a new 
biography, we anticipate this exhibition to be a considerable draw for audiences 
regionally and nationally. We are grateful to  HM Government for providing 
Government Indemnity and the Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport and 
Arts Council England for arranging the indemnity, without which this exhibition would 
not be possible. 

17. Accompanying events include a symposium on 26 June, art workshops and evening 
‘Lates’ themed appropriately. 

18. The Private View has attracted generous funding from Dukes -Auctioneers of 
Dorchester 

‘From The Outside In: Responding to Art and Sculpture from the Russell-Cotes 
Africa Collection’ – Print Room Exhibition 

19. We worked with diverse community groups to develop an exhibition of African art 
and sculptures from the collection, using it to explore our collection and ideas of 
colonialism, collecting, representation and meaning. This exhibition will be on 
display for the year and will be the springboard for further activities and events in 
partnership with different communities.  

Christmas 

20. For the first time since 2019, we delivered the full Christmas offer, with decorations, 
an evening opening, Father Christmas for children, Christmas teas and a Christmas 
weekend.  The events were extremely popular, though the Museum was generally 
very quiet otherwise, so the challenge this year is to build further on the offer in a 
sustainable way. 

Events 

21. Online talks seem to have less appeal and visitors are keen to return to in-person 
activity, so we have scaled these back up and are looking for additional sustainable 
ideas, particularly now our extensive network of supporters can be reached through 
the website and social media. 

22. We reintroduced the Upstairs Downstairs tours, which sold out immediately for the 
entire year. New dates have been added and staff and volunteers are now 
developing monthly bookable tours on specialist topics eg jewellery, world cultures 
and women artists. 117 adults came to the ever-popular Hallowe’en event. 

90



 

The Centenary 1922 - 2022  

23. The Centenary was marked by a range of low-key activities, badged up with a 
distinctive logo and aimed at themes of celebration, commemoration, new audiences 
and engagement.  It included an exhibition on the centenary, social media campaign 
focussing on 100 objects from the collection, Sixpence Days, Lates programme, 
children’s activities in the garden including a party. Many people engaged with 
different activities. 

24. As a result, we will continue offering 4 Sixpence Days per year to reach those 
people for whom an entrance charge is a barrier to visiting.  We will continue the 
popular ‘Lates’ programme of themed events on the evening of the 3rd Thursday of 
the month, which is a main driver to our Friends and Annual Ticket holders. We will 
continue the children’s activities in the garden but with a more modest offer, at a 
small charge to make it sustainable. 

Education, Engagement and Digital 

25. School visits (14 sessions for 424 pupils) and home education sessions (5 sessions 
for 42 students) continue.  We collaborated with AUB Event Management BA 
students to deliver the February Valentine-themed Late.  

26. Family Activity Days were held in October (3 sessions for 146 children) and 
February (3 sessions for 75 children).  71 children visited Father Christmas.  

27. Digital talks are continuing in a more limited number than during the pandemic.  The 
museum has been posting on Tiktok. In the medium term, the Museum intends to 
utilise the Smartify app for digital content on and off site better.  In the longer term 
the museum website needs a refresh to better handle online bookings and digital 
content, for which it was not designed 8 years ago.  

Audiences  

28. Good relationships have been established with DEED which has led to community 
support on the Inside Out exhibition.  Russell-Cotes is supporting DEED and the 
Citizens Advice Bureau on their NHLF funded project ‘Where we can call home’ 
looking at experience of migration in BCP. Further intensive work is paused until a 
new Collections Officer is in post. 

29. First meetings of Focus Groups on Visitor Experience, Programming, Access and 
Equality and Inclusion have largely taken place and they should provide excellent 
opportunity to seek the views and ideas of our diverse visitors and communities, 
help inform the work of the Russell-Cotes, ensuring that it is relevant, engaging and 
respectful to all, and to drive improvements across our work. The groups will meet 
three times per year. 

Marketing 

30. The Museum has linked up with Dorset Magazine and is supplying monthly content. 
We have developed more content, particularly video, to be used on all media and we 
have developed new channels such as Linkedin and Tiktok. 

31. We are using the Marketing Strategy to inform decisions on the print leaflets for the 
new season and Bournemouth-wide posters. The Focus Groups will be a useful 
forum for refining marketing messages further.  

Facilities and Income Generation 

91



Café  

32. The income target for the café is £130,000 and at end of February income is 
£126,000, so likely to be exceeded.  From October to March (to date) the café 
income has been £65,400 with 10,000 customers to the café. Afternoon teas have 
continued to be popular; we have welcomed 514 for afternoon tea generating an 
income of £7,975 (£4,912.50 in the December alone) 

33. The monthly late events have brought in an extra income of £3.8k over the 5 events 
(October-February) 

34. Group bookings seem to be returning, the café has catered for 12 group visits to the 
museums (a total of 276 visitors) and £1.6k income. 

35. In the current climate of food supply and prices, we have had to adapt to periods of 
items being unavailable and regular price rises. This is likely to continue for a while 
yet, and will be monitored closely. A menu price rise is set to be introduced for 
beginning of April. 

Shop 

36. The Russell-Cotes has raised £100,000 in shop sales, towards a target of £104,000 
which it should exceed.  However, a profit target of £70,000 may be impacted 
slightly because a significant quantity of stock has been ordered ahead of the Lucy 
Kemp Welch exhibition opening on 1 April.  

37. Shop sales Sep 22 – Feb 23 were £44,000, which is lower than for the previous 6 
months reflecting the merchandising strength of the summer ‘The Lost Words’ 
exhibition, as well as season, closure etc.  

The allocation of space in the café gallery is clearly reflected in the sales figures. In 
2022/23 the gallery was used for an art exhibition and books, whereas in 2021/22 it 
was used for own prints.  

Top product categories  

Category 22/23                                       21/22 Comment 

Books  £8,477                           £5,295       Reflects strength of exhibitions 

 

Prints  £7,337                            £9,706       Reflects reallocation of wall 
space for art exhibition  

Cards £5,677                           £5,268        Improved ordering 

 

38. Top individual sellers are postcards (as a whole), guide books, frames for prints (no 
change from 2021/22. 

 

Staffing, Volunteer and Training  

39. The Marketing Officer has gone on maternity leave, but an internal temporary 
replacement is successfully in place. A new Senior Museum Assistant has been 
recruited.  

40. The Collections and Engagement Officer recruited on an 18 month contract to 
support programming, engagement and reinterpretation display particularly in the 

92



context of reaching new audiences, decolonisation issues and the ACE ‘Let’s 
Create’ agenda has resigned, but we will seek to appoint a replacement to fulfil the 
remaining 8 months of the contract. 

41. Volunteer recruitment continues, although there were challenges filling all the 
stewarding hours for the exhibition. 6 monthly training sessions have been 
established and attract 20 – 30 individuals each time (from about 100 volunteers). 

42. Museum staff undertook further training on salvage and have updated policies and 
equipment in the light of learning, with further scenario training planned. 

 

Funding 

43. See separate report on the ACE MEND fund. 

44. The application for core funding from the Arts Council through the National Portfolio 
Organisation programme was unsuccessful with the feedback citing poor 
governance and use of data as the only reasons.  

45. The Art Fund and Weston Loan Programme has provided £19,000 of support to the 
Russell-Cotes as lead partner for the Lucy Kemp-Welch exhibition.  

46. The Russell-Cotes has been awarded a grant of £98,500 from the National Heritage 
Lottery Fund to support the transition costs for externalisation. The Russell-Cotes is 
grateful to the players of the National Lottery for their support.  See separate paper 
on externalisation.  

47. The application made to DCMS/Wolfson Museum Improvement Fund and Talbot 
Village Trust for a project to refurbish the Sculpture Gallery was also unsuccessful. 

48. We have initiated a fundraising campaign amongst Friends to raise £1600 to repair 
the nose missing from our sculpture of Queen Victoria, 1848 by John Gibson RA.  

 

Governance 

49. See separate report on externalisation and governance review. 

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

There are no appendices to this report. 

 

93



This page is intentionally left blank

94



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND 
MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Update on 'Repair and Renewal' Project funded by ACE MEND 
for restoration of Conservatory  

Meeting date  20 March 2023 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The ACE MEND Project is underway: 

 work on replacement and renewal of the environmental 
plant and machinery is designed and commissioned with 
work starting on 13 March and to be completed in 3 phases 
by February 2024.    

 The detailed specifications and work required for the 
Conservatory repairs have been completed ready for 
imminent tender.  

 Drainage surveys completed 

 CCTV updates yet to be started  

The project remains in budget and on time, with a proposed 
completion date of February 2024. 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Management Committee reviews the report and agrees 
any actions required 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The Management Committee are responsible for oversight of the 
Russell-Cotes and are required by the ACE MEND funding to 
monitor progress on the MEND project. 

  

95

Agenda Item 7



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Beverley Dunlop, Portfolio Holder for Tourism, Culture and 
Vibrant Places 

Corporate Director  Jess Gibbons, Chief Operating Officer 

Report Authors Amanda Barrie, Service Director, Destination and Culture 

Michael Spender, Head of Culture 

Sarah Newman, Museum Manager 

Wards  Not applicable  

Classification  For Update  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. Russell-Cotes received £518,000 from ACE MEND Fund in 2022 to deliver a defined 
programme of maintenance work.  Together with funding from donations, CIL and 
BCP Council this project has a total budget of £988,000. 

2. Philip Hughes Associates were appointed as the lead designers. 

3. There are four elements – plant, conservatory, drainage and CCTV.  

 

Renewal of Environmental Plant and Machinery 

4. Martin Thomas Associates were appointed as the sub-contractors for the design of 
the Mechanical and Engineering Services and Watertite as the building contractors.  
Support is being provided by surveyors and engineers from Building Services. 

5. Watertite has been appointed on a framework contract which has allowed a 
collaborative approach. 

6. The Objectives are to 

  renew the end-of-life plant 

 provide the appropriate environmental conditions for the area of the museum ie  
museum standard, climate control in the galleries and historic house, for visitor 
comfort only in the modern wing. 

  reduce the reliance on fossil fuels 

  reduce costs with new approach, more efficient plant and zones 

 

Schedule  

7. The work has been phased particularly to ensure: 

 The Museum aims to stay open throughout, so we can maintain our offer and 
continue to bring in income.   

96



 environmental standards maintained in galleries so the exhibition programme can 
continue  

 loss of air conditioning and boilers has the least impact on collections, staff and 
visitor comfort 

Challenges 

8. Timescales have been modified because of the slow progress in developing designs 
(because of limited access to the site and the number of services and professionals 
needed to input) and the long order time on critical parts.  

9. The available electrical supply has limited the use of electrical equipment, and 
required the retention of gas boilers. 

10. Sign off on the conditions required for planning permission is still required – for the 
flue, enclosures for the condensers etc. 

Work 

11. All designs have been completed and budgeted for Plant Rooms 1,2 and 3. Plant 
Room 4 (café) work is still to be finalized.  It includes 

 replacing existing gas fired boilers with 2 new 65kw gas fired condensing boilers, 
including replacing entire flue system. 

 replacing refrigerant condensers with new. 

 completely refurbishing all 4 air handling nnits with new fans, heating coils, DX 
coils, filters, steam humidifiers, VAV dampers, fire dampers, etc. 

 completely replacing BMS controls. 

 general small builder works in connection with the above. 

 

12. Timescale 

 Phase 1 works to plant rooms 1& 2 (historic house) will commence in March 2023 
and be complete by the end of May 2023. 

  Phase 2 works to plant room 3 (galleries)  (and may include work to plantroom 4 
(café)) will commence in October 2023. 

 Phase 3 – Plant Room 4 scheduled for January 2024 and will require an 
extended closure of the Museum. 

Impact 

13. Apart from Plant Room 4, the work will be contained in the garden and in the offices 
area, so it is likely to impact most on staff because of noise, disturbance, loss of 
heating and longer opening hours. However, measures have been taken to mitigate 
this wherever possible. 

14. Impact on visitors will be noise and potential coldness in the museum, so messaging 
will go out on the website, social media and on site to forewarn visitors.  

15. Work on Plant Room 4 will require the closure of the café gallery, and therefore the 
museum, so will be scheduled for a quiet period (January 2024). 

 

97



Conservatory Repairs  

16. Philip Hughes Associates has prepared the specification for the repair works on the 
Conservatory which include: 

 removal of all glazing 

 repair of timber and iron glazing bars and joinery 

 cleaning and replacement of existing glass and new glass to replace cracked 
panes 

 repair and replacement of rainwater goods 

 repair and redecoration of internal and external walls  

 repairs to floors, steel beam and tiling 

 

17. 4 companies have expressed an interest in tendering for the work, which is 
scheduled to start in June and take 4 months. 

 

Drainage 

18. A drainage survey has taken place and tenders received for the work. 

 

CCTV 

19. An allocation of budget has been made to improving the CCTV coverage on the 
roof.  

 

Budget 

20. The project is within budget, with contingency still available. Increasing costs and 
likely higher building tenders remain a concern and will be closely monitored 
throughout to ensure that priority work can be delivered. 

 

Background papers 

 None  

98



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND 
MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Update on Progress towards Externalization 

Meeting date  20 March 2023 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Management 
Committee’s recommendation for governance change of the 
Museum has been fully supported by the approval of 
externalisation, formally agreed at BCP Council meeting on 10 
January 2023.  Financial support of £98,500 has been received 
from National Heritage Lottery Fund which will support the legal 
costs for governance change and the transition costs for a new 
independent operation. 

The work programme to achieve externalisation can now be 
implemented.  The priority is to initiate the application to the Charity 
Commission for a change of governance under Section 73 of the 
Charities Act, which requires decisions on the specific governance 
changes desired. 

In order to manage the complex, multi-faceted process a Steering 
Committee will be set up consisting of Portfolio Holder, 
Management Committee Members, BCP Council officers and 
museum staff and advisers, which will meet regularly. This is in 
addition to regular update reports to this Committee for approval. 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Management Committee reviews the report and agrees the 
recommendation to  

 Establish a project steering group to oversee and 
support progress to deliver BCP Council’s 
recommendation of full externalisation for the Russell-
Cotes 

 Proceed with the work programme outlined with BCP 
officer support. 

 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure the timely delivery of the externalisation of the Russell-
Cotes as has been formally agreed by BCP Council as Trustee. 

99

Agenda Item 8



  

100



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Beverley Dunlop, Portfolio Holder for Tourism, Culture and 
Vibrant Places 

Corporate Director  Jess Gibbons, Chief Operations Officer 

Report Authors Sarah Newman, Museum Manager 

Michael Spender, Head of Culture 

Amanda Barrie, Director, Destination and Culture 

Wards  Not applicable  

Classification  For Update and Decision  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. The Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum (RCAGM) with its Grade 2* listed house 
and internationally significant collections was gifted to the people of Bournemouth in 
1908 and was held in trust by Bournemouth Borough Council and its successors, as 
sole Trustee, ever since. (Charity Reg No 306288).  

2. The governance, relatively unchanged for 100 years, is a mix of Local Authority and 
charity practice which cannot provide appropriate oversight, financial transparency 
or strategic leadership and does not meet the required standards for a modern 
charity 

3. BCP Council Cabinet acts as the Museum’s Management Committee but has 
delegated its responsibilities to the Russell-Cotes Management Committee, which 
acts as a subcommittee. It consists of Councillors and non-voting independent 
members. The Management Committee has determined, after detailed investigation, 
that full independence is the best way to safeguard the long-term future of the 
Museum.  

4. The Charity Commission has examined the issues and concluded that a change of 
governance is in the best interests of the charity and in August 2022 invited BCP 
Council to formally request a parliamentary scheme to replace the Local Authority 
Trustee with a new corporate Trustee under Section 73 of the Charities Act 2011. 

5. At their meeting of 10 October 2022, the Management Committee recommended to 
BCP Council that it formally approve the progress of the externalisation of the 
Russell-Cotes to a fully independent charity 

Council Approval 

6. The full report, outlining the case for externalisation, was presented to BCP Council 
on 10 January 2023 and was formally approved.  

 

7. The Council agreed the following recommendations 

 that the future of the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum, for which it is sole 
trustee, would be best served by externalisation in the form of the transfer of Sole 

101



Trusteeship to a new corporate entity (CLG or CIO) to operate and manage the 
charity.   

 as Sole Trustee of the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum to make a formal 
application to the Charity Commission for a change of governance under Section 
73 of Charities Act 2011 to replace the Council as sole trustee with a new 
corporate entity (CLG or CIO) acting as sole trustee and for the modernisation of 
governance articles. 

 to establish a Corporate Entity (CLG or CIO) and appoint a Shadow Board of 5 
nominees to oversee the transition to independence, provide continuity and 
stability and to maintain an on-going supportive relationship with the new 
CLG/CIO. 

 to negotiate, during the transition phase, future years grant support for the new 
Trustee, along with the transfer of assets, lease arrangements etc with an 
expected vesting day of 1 April 2024 at the earliest. 

 To delegate authority to the Director of Finance, Director of Law & Governance 
and the Chief Operations Officer to determine the best financial model in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder. 

 

Funding Support from National Heritage Lottery Fund (NHLF) 

8. A successful application was made to the NHLF for £98,500 to support the 
governance project entitled ‘Securing Sustainable Governance for the Russell-Cotes 
Art Gallery & Museum’. £20,000 of match funding has been promised from core 
funding. The Russell-Cotes is very grateful to the players of the National Lottery for 
their support for this project. 

9. This funding will provide support for the application to the charity notably for: 

 Legal costs for the application to the Charity Commission and establishment of 
the new corporate entity  

 Project Manager 

 Costs associated with establishing the new independent charity eg Pension costs 
associated with LGPS etc; developing an HR policy and framework, IT 
infrastructure and financial systems 

 Board recruitment and development 

 Staff training 

 Developing a fundraising strategy 

 outreach and engagement activity with our community around the change in 
governance 

 evaluation  

 

Project Management 

10. As outlined in the agreed recommendations, the move to full independence is highly 
complex and will require very significant negotiations across a number of areas. 

102



11. In order to ensure progress, a Steering Group, reflecting the scope of the project will 
be established and meet every two months.  It will consist of:   

 RCAGM Management Committee Chair – Prof Stuart Bartholomew 

 Portfolio Holder – Cllr Beverley Dunlop 

 RCAGM Management committee member – Alan Frost 

 BCP – Service Director  

 Amanda Barrie (Destination and Culture) till 1 April 

 Matti Raudsepp (Customers, Arts and Estates) after 1 April 

 BCP – Head of Culture – Michael Spender 

 BCP – Senior Financial Manager– Nicola Webb or other officer 

 BCP – Director of Law and Governance – Susan Zeiss or other officer 

 BCP – Programmes and Project Management Team – Matthew Rabbitt 

 RCAGM – Museum Manager – Sarah Newman 

 RCAGM – Project Manager – to be appointed 

 Dorset, BCP Museum Development Officer – Vicky de Wit. 

 

12. The RCAGM Management Committee will be updated and make recommendations 
at meetings as required.   

13. BCP Chief Executive and Chief Operations Officer will also be kept informed 
routinely. 

14. Initially, no conflicts of interest have been identified between any of the parties, but 
as the process of externalisation continues, there will be negotiations between the 
different parties – new Trustee and BCP as old Trustee and as future funder.  This 
will be reflected in the decision-making process in due course.  

 

Projected Milestones 

15. Below is the outline of milestones required. The dates are only indicative of the 
process, as at the time of writing a response from the Charity Commission and 
DCMS on timeframes was still awaited. A time frame for vesting of the Charity had 
been suggested of 1 April 2024 – 1 April 2025. 

 

Projected Dates Activity 

14-Dec-22 Approval of Externalisation by BCP Cabinet 

Dec - Jan Establish a sub group of the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and 

Museum Management Committee to develop risk 

assessment and monitor risk through project 

10-Jan-23 Approval of Externalisation by BCP Council 

103



Spring Council Finance Team review Business Plan for 

externalisation in detail 

Feb-23 NHLF funding secured 

Spring 23 Recruit a Project Manager 

Spring 23 Commission an evaluator 

Spring Consultation with the people of BCP, regular visitors, 

Friends, Annual Ticket Holders, volunteers and staff  

Spring Update major Stakeholders eg Arts Council, AUB, BU, 

cultural sector colleagues etc about progress of 

governance change 

Spring Procure Legal advice on governance changes - choose 

which vehicle for new sole trustee - CLG or CIO; any other 

changes needed to modernise the charity 

spring Apply to Charity Commission for a change of governance 

under Section 73 of the Charities Act 

Summer Establish new Corporate Trustee - CIO or CLG  

Summer Recruit the board of directors for the new Corporate 

Trustee 

Summer Drafting Phase of the new Governance arrangements  

Summer Board development - diversity and inclusion training, 

development of vision and values 

Autumn New Trustee agrees Business Plan Version 1; key 

principles for Legal agreements identified; Building 

liabilities and agreements identified in principle 

Autumn Agreement in principle of draft funding and transfer 

arrangement 

Autumn Publicity phase of new Governance arrangements 

Autumn Due diligence on business plan; formal consultation with 

staff and unions; identify pension providers and 

arrangements; prepare legal drafts for agreements on 

transfer of assets; finalise building maintenance; plan 

finance systems and IT systems and data transfer 

Summer- Autumn Stakeholder comms, marketing plan, community 

consultation 

104



Autumn Charity Commission: Internal approval of Governance 

Change 

Winter Ministerial approval of governance change and settlement  

Winter 2023 Decision to proceed by BCP Council and new Trustee 

Spring 2024 finalisation of all agreements, TUPE staff, pensions set up 

contracts, establish bank accounts, ICT branding, new 

marketing plan 

Spring 2024  Parliamentary Phase - Order of State laid before 

Parliament of 21 days 

01-Apr-24 Vesting Day 

 

 

Current Priorities 

16. The main priority is to make the application for governance change to the Charity 
Commission. We are therefore working with the legal team to scope and tender the 
legal work required to provide detailed advice on the specific governance changes 
required (ie the modernisation of the governing document and the optimum vehicle 
for the new entity (CLG or CIO) so that an application to the Charity Commission on 
behalf of BCP Council as Trustee.  

17. Further consultation is taking place with visitors and community, onsite and online, 
with questionnaires, to support the application to Charity Commission. Major 
stakeholders will be updated on developments. 

18. We will also begin the recruitment of an Evaluator and Project Manager. 

19. It is also important that we start discussions with BCP Council about the financial 
settlement, so that the draft Business Plan can be developed fully, with its 
implications for funding and operations. 

 

Summary of financial implications 

20. Consideration will be part of the process of externalisation 

Summary of legal implications 

21. Consideration will be part of the process of externalisation 

Summary of human resources implications 

22. Consideration will be part of the process of externalisation 

Summary of sustainability impact 

23. N/A – Completed for externalisation decision 

105



Summary of equality implications 

24. EIA completed for externalisation decision 

Summary of risk assessment 

25. Full consideration will be part of the process of externalisation 

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

 There are no appendices to this report. 

106


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes
	5 Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report
	Appendix 1 for Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report
	Appendix 2 for Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report

	6 Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum Update Report
	7 Update on 'Repair and Renewal' Project funded by ACE MEND for restoration of Conservatory
	8 Update on Progress towards Externalization

